Public Notice of Meeting WILTON-LYNDEBOROUGH COOPERATIVE SCHOOL BOARD MEETING

Tuesday, April 2, 2024

vndeborough Cooperative M/H

Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative M/H School 6:30 p.m.

Videoconferencing: meet.google.com/ytk-seio-tes Audio: +1 347-690-1097 PIN: 877 823 193#

All videoconferencing options may be subject to modifications. Please check www.sau63.org for the latest information.

- I. CALL TO ORDER-Dennis Golding-Chair
- II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
- III. STAFF ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
- IV. ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA
- V. PRESENTATION-BIOTREK
- VI. OLD BUSINESS
 - i. WLC Classroom 101
- VII. PUBLIC COMMENTS: This is the public's opportunity to speak to items on the agenda. In the interest of preserving individual privacy and due process rights, the Board requests that comments (including complaints) regarding individual employees or students be directed to the Superintendent in accord with the processes set forth in School Board Policies KE, KEB and BEDH.

VIII. BOARD CORRESPONDENCE

- a. Reports
 - i. Superintendent's Report
 - ii. Student School Board Report
- iii. Principals' Reports
- iv. Curriculum Coordinator's Report
- v. WLCTA Report
- IX. ACTION ITEMS
 - a. Approve Minutes of Previous Meeting
- X. COMMUNITY PARTICIPATION ON COMMITTEES
- XI. COMMITTEE REPORTS
 - i. Technology Committee
- XII. RESIGNATIONS/APPOINTMENTS/LEAVES
 - a. FYI-New Hire-Jill Hopkins-Food Services
 - b. Resignation-Sophia Menke Elementary Teacher-Last Day of School
 - c. Resignation-Taylor Smith-Spanish Teacher-End of Year
- XIII. PUBLIC COMMENTS
- XIV. SCHOOL BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS
- XV. NON-PUBLIC SESSION RSA 91-A: 3 II (A) (B) (C)
 - i. Review the nonpublic minutes
 - ii. Personnel Matter

XVI. ADJOURNMENT

INFORMATION: Next School Board Meeting-April 16, 6:30 PM at WLC

WLC School Board Report

Hannah Hamilton, High School Representative

SRO Position:

A while back, you requested that I talk to my peers about the SRO position in our school. I talked to a large amount of the student body, and many students said it would be a good idea. Students said that having an SRO would give students another person to bond with other than the teachers.

Winter Showcase:

On March 7th our school had a showcase night for students to share their talent with our school and community. We had 13 acts.

Ski Trip:

On March 21st the Junior and Seniors went on a ski trip. Many staff members joined them, and it was an amazing experience for all!

BioTrek:

Students in High School Biology classes had the opportunity to participate in the BioTrek program that is offered through ARMI, or Biofab.USA. All groups had their presentations in the beginning of march. We are so grateful for all of the teachers that took the time out of their days to come and judge the students. After the presentations, there were 4 selected winners. On the 14th, The 4 groups competed in the final round, and we determined a winner. Our winning group will now be going to compete in the next competition that will be held at Southern New Hampshire University.

Spring Sports:

We have officially kicked off spring sports! We are so excited for the seasons ahead of us! Go Warriors!

WLC Drama:

The WLC Drama club would like to invite you all to come and see Seussical on April 4th and 5th at 6pm!

WLC Middle School:

Ecology School : The 6th grade class will be attending Ecology School in Saco, Maine from April 9th until April 12th. They will participate in lessons with an emphasis on the environment and exploring outdoors.

Boston Trip: The 8th grade class will be attending a field trip to Boston May 8th and May 9th

WLC Principal's Report: April 2, 2024

Honor Students:

On February 22nd we hosted inductions for the National Junior Honor Society (Middle School) and the National Honor Society (High School). The total number of students inducted were:

- Middle School = 22 new (32 total members)
- High School = 12 new (13 total members)

BioTrek:

Throughout the past eight weeks, all 9th and 10th grade students participated in a BioTrek program through Armi, an organization working on finding cures to many medical conditions through bio fabrication. Students worked in teams to research, develop, and present a product to improve a specific health condition honing in on both science and business skills. Teams needed to account for the growth factors, cellular components, scaffolds, cultural environment, stimuli, and much more for their product. After a rigorous judging, on March 14th, the top four teams were selected to perform their final pitch to a team of judges. The judges included; WLC Principal Tom Ronning, Gabby Morrosis (Armi Lead Educator), Megan Verno (Armi Regulatory Group), and Paul Vassar (Wilton owner of Pict Wool company).

The winner of March 14ths final pitch was *T.E.M.P Aortic Stenosis* and they will head to the Final Event at Southern New Hampshire University to compete against several schools' final teams.



Assessments:

 Middle School: Students in grades 6 through 8 participated in the NHSAS (New Hampshire's Statewide Assessment System) in the area of writing. Students were given different prompts that required them to write a narrative, expository, or argumentative

- essay. In May students will also take the reading and math portion with grade 8 taking an additional assessment in science.
- High School: students in grade 9 and 10 took the latest PSAT assessment with grade 11 taking the SAT assessment as required by NH State. This year our post assessment schedule was updated to reflect time for students to be involved with course remediation, skill assessments for possible careers and helping students best understand the common application process. In May students in Grade 11 will also take the NHSAS in the area of science.

Facebook: WLC has a Facebook page: **WLC Middle High School.** It is our goal to begin posting information a minimum of two times per week.

Graduation Date: We respectfully request graduation to be held on Friday, June 7th @ 7PM.

WLC Starfish Nominations (By colleagues):

| Cathy Blais | Laura Bujak | Bill Comerford | Katie Gosselin |
|-------------|-----------------|----------------|----------------|
| Emily Hall | Danyele Manning | Tom Ronning | Erin Rosana |
| Cam Taber | Marybeth Wiley | | |

Lions Club/PTO Penny Sale

WLC hosted the Penny Sale for the PTO and Lions Club. Despite the weather, this event was a big success. The money raised will be broken down as follows: 50% Lions Club; 25% PTO; 25% Junior Class.

Upcoming dates:

- April 8th: Baseball opening games at Derryfield; Softball at Farmington
 - First Home game April 10th playing Hinsdale (Baseball and Softball)
- April 8th through 12th Artist in Residence
- April 13th through 21st: Trip to Italy
- April 9th through 12th: Grade 6 to Ecology Camp
- April 11th and 12th: Musical, 6:00

WLC Discipline Data

High School Discipline Referrals:

- For the month of January there were 14 log entries recorded in powerschool for administration
- These log entries represent 9% of students (12 kids out of 132)
- For the month of February, there were 15 log entities recorded in powerschool for administration
- These log entries represent 9.8% of students (13 kids out of 132)

| Category | September | October | November | <u>December</u> | <u>January</u> | <u>February</u> | |
|--|-----------|---------|----------|-----------------|----------------|-----------------|--|
| Total Log Entries | 27 | 17 | 12 | 11 | 14 | 15 | |
| Detentions | 12 | 5 | 6 | 4 | 4 | 7 | |
| In School Suspension | 2 | 5 | 0 | 0 | 1 | 1 | |
| Out of School Suspension | 5 | 2 | 5 | 1 | 2 | 4 | |
| Restorative Practice | 8 | 2 | 0 | 1 | 2 | 0 | |
| Other (iesuspension from athletics, bus suspension, etc) | 0 | 2 | 1 | 5 | 5 | 3 | |

Middle School Discipline Referrals:

- For the month of January there were 16 log entries recorded in powerschool for administration
- These log entries represent 9.3% of students (11 kids out of 118)
- For the month of February, there were 20 log entries recorded in powerschool for administration
- These log entries represent 8.4% of students (10 kids out of 118)

| <u>Year</u> | September | <u>October</u> | <u>November</u> | <u>December</u> | <u>January</u> | <u>February</u> | |
|---|-----------|----------------|-----------------|-----------------|----------------|-----------------|--|
| Log Entries | 19 | 15 | 16 | 16 | 16 | 20 | |
| Detentions | 7 | 5 | 7 | 6 | 12 | 10 | |
| In School Suspension | 2 | 5 | 6 | 2 | 2 | 1 | |
| Out of School Suspension | 0 | 2 | 0 | 2 | 0 | 3 | |
| Restorative Practice | 8 | 2 | 2 | 5 | 1 | 4 | |
| Other (ie- suspension from athletics, bus suspension, etc) | 2 | 1 | 1 | 0 | 1 | 2 | |

FLORENCE RIDEOUT ELEMENTARY SCHOOL LYNDEBOROUGH CENTRAL SCHOOL

18 Tremont Street
Wilton, New Hampshire 03086
(603) 732-9229
www.sau63.org

Bridgette Fuller, Principal FRES/LCS
Christina Gauthier. Administrative Assistant FRES

Kathleen Chenette, Student Services Coordinator LCS Sherry LeBlanc, Administrative Assistant LCS

Principal Report April 2, 2024

February and March continued to be busy months at LCS and FRES. The PTO organized a family dance and hosted a well-attended skate night. Classrooms continued reinforcing and recognizing students for demonstrating our CARES learning habits, staff engaged in a collaborative professional development day, and phase one of this year's state testing commenced. Families continued to take advantage of after-school tutoring and math enrichment opportunities. On April 1, an additional after-school club, Girls on The Run, an empowering athletic opportunity for girls in grades 3-5, began.

State Testing

On March 5, fourth graders at FRES represented the state of New Hampshire in the National Assessment of Educational Progress (NAEP) testing, also known as The Nation's Report Card. Fourth graders were divided into two groups and completed assessments in either Reading or Math. Click here to learn more about the NAEP test.

In March, grade 3-5 students participated in the New Hampshire Statewide Assessment System (NH SAS) writing assessment. They will complete the reading and math assessments beginning April 15th. Our fifth graders will also participate in the NH SAS Science assessment on April 9, 2024.

Afterschool Opportunities

Beginning in February, select students were invited to participate in after-school tutoring. Tutoring occurs on Tuesday, Wednesday, and Thursday afternoons; roughly 30 students participate each afternoon. Crazy 8's is a math club whose mission is to make kids enjoy math as much as they love sports, music, and other extracurricular activities. Crazy 8's club occurs on Tuesdays and Thursdays; roughly 16 students participate per session.

Behavior

There has been a decrease in behavior and bus referrals at FRES this month.

| FRES | September Referrals | October Referrals | November Referrals | December Referrals | January Referrals | February Referrals | March Referrals | Difference |
|--|------------------------|----------------------|-----------------------|-----------------------|----------------------|-----------------------|--------------------|------------|
| Total Log Entries Bus | 13 | 11 | 6 | 8 | 11 | 8 | 5 | -3 |
| Log Entries for "Major Behavior" School | 32 | 57 | 27 | 23 | 17 | 14 | 13 | -1 |
| Restorative Practice | 14 | 17 | 5 | 1 | 1 | 0 | 0 | 0 |
| Loss of Privilege (often combined with restorative practice) | 16 | 32 | 13 | 20 | 13 | 12 | 10 | -2 |
| In School Suspension | 2 | 4 | 6 | 2 | 2 | 2 | 3 | +1 |
| Out of School Suspension | 1 | 4 | 3 | 0 | 1 | 0 | 0 | 0 |

Behavior Data Observations:

In September 2023, there were 45 log entries (Bus and School) recorded in PowerSchool

- These log entries represent 11% of students (27 students out of 242)
- Rollout of Mental Health room for student support from a social worker

In October 2023, there were 68 log entries (Bus and School) recorded in PowerSchool

- These log entries represent 12% of students (28 students out of 242)
- Bus 6 monitor hired

In November 2023, there were 33 log entries (Bus and School) recorded in PowerSchool

- These log entries represent 10% of students (25 students out of 242)
- Shift from student support led by a social worker to behavior and self-regulation support from ABAs and BCBA

In December 2023, there were 31 log entries (Bus and School) recorded in PowerSchool

• These log entries represent 8% of students (19 students out of 243)

In January 2024, there were 28 log entries (Bus and School) recorded in PowerSchool

- These log entries represent 7% of students (18 students out of 243)
- Monthly CARES Learning Habit student recognition and Whole School Assembly implementation

In February 2024, there were 23 log entries (Bus and School) recorded in PowerSchool

• These log entries represent 6% of students (15 students out of 243)

In March 2024, there were 18 log entries (Bus and School) recorded in PowerSchool

• These log entries represent 6% of students (15 students out of 241)

IMPORTANT DATES

 April 4, 2024-- Passive ALICE Drill (lockdown/Barricade scenarios) at FRES & FRES Whole School Meeting recognizing students who have demonstrated the CARES learning habit: responsibility.

- April 5, 2024- Report Cards go home
- April 8, 2024- Solar Eclipse; Miss Boo from the public library is scheduled to visit 1st and 4th grade classrooms.
- April 16, 2024- Grades K-2 Spring Concert Dress Rehearsal: Kindergarten students will join us at FRES.
- April 18, 2024- Grades K-2 Spring Concert, 6-7 pm at FRES
- April 22, 2024-April 26, 2024: Spring Break
- May 2, 2024- Grades 3-5 Spring Concert, 6-7 pm at FRES



Officer Frechette Vistis 5th Graders



4th Graders debate as "Colonists and Loyalists"



Students from Ms. DiFilippo's Kindergarten Class displaying their Leprechaun Trap



Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District School Administrative Unit #63

192 Forest Road Lyndeborough, NH 03082 603-732-9227

Peter Weaver Superintendent of Schools Ned Pratt
Director of Student Support Services

Kristie LaPlante Business Administrator

Curriculum Coordinator Report April 2, 2024

Professional Learning

Professional Development

Teachers participated in a professional development day on 3/11/24 focused on collaboration. Teachers spent time working collaboratively in K-12 groupings to align their content as well as within grade-level spans K-6 and departmental groupings 6-12.

The Vocabulary Playbook: Learning Words that Matter K-12, book study mentioned in the previous report held the first meeting. Teachers have received their books and are excited to begin to build cohesive structures for learning vocabulary throughout the district.

New Teacher Program

At our New Teacher Meeting on 3/25/24, teachers analyzed their own formative assessments against a set of criteria (for example aligned to standards/competencies). This is important work for teachers to do because it provides them with opportunities to tweak their assessments moving forward.

Curriculum

Our Curriculum website continues to develop. Nicholas Buroker and I have been collaborating on updating the entire curriculum portion of the website. There are several changes to the website, and there continues to be new material regularly. Please check it out here when you have a moment. While this is happening, teachers are continuing their work on the Unit Plans so they can be put up on the database.

A group of teachers who are interested in supporting our staff in selecting a new ELA program have met several times to review programs that are aligned with the Science of Reading and are knowledge-building programs. This means that students are not just learning about the comprehension components of reading, but also building background knowledge in a variety of other subjects (for example science and social studies content).

Instruction

Classroom observations are continuing at FRES, including pre and post-observation conferences. These are integral in supporting teachers in their learning. The middle school team met to develop plans for students based on their iReady scores so we can continue to push these students and make an impact on their learning. These were productive meetings that we will hopefully see the results of in the spring iReady and NH SAS assessments.

Thanks to a dedicated committee of teachers throughout the district, we will have an Artist in Residence program in all three schools this year. The students will create a mural that represents "Our Community". This is an exciting project and a huge undertaking for all the teachers involved.

Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District provides a safe and educational environment that promotes student exploration, critical thinking and responsible citizenship.

Assessment

As you know, our fourth-grade students were selected to participate in the National Assessment of Educational Progress (NAEP). This assessment is also known as "The Nation's Report Card". Our students in 4th grade were selected to participate in either reading or math assessments determined by the NAEP coordinator we worked with. This testing went smoothly and was expertly handled by the classroom teachers, special education teachers, our school counselor, and the technology department. Without everyone working collaboratively, this would not have been possible.

FRES

At FRES, I continue to support students and staff by attending 504 meetings, and IEP meetings. I am also working with students who need extra support to be successful throughout their day.

Upcoming Events:

- 4/2 ELA sub-committee
- 4/8 Professional Development Committee

Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District provides a safe and educational environment that promotes student exploration, critical thinking and responsible citizenship.

WLCTA School Board Report April 2, 2024

FRES/LCS

- The third quarter finished up last week and everyone is excited to get into the last quarter of the school year. We can't believe it's already April! End of the year activities are getting closer, so watch for communication from your child's school on what that entails.
- Kindergarten, first, and second grade have their spring concert on April 18th at 6pm. Third, fourth, and fifth graders will have their spring concert after spring break on May 2nd, also at 6pm.
- We will be recognizing our Responsibility Ambassadors on Thursday as part of our CARES initiative. Responsibility is demonstrated by:
 - Completing assigned tasks
 - Participating in class
 - Accepting ownership of your choices
 - Organizing and managing your work effectively
 - Showing perseverance
- Girls on the Run is back and will be starting on April 1st. This is a program for girls in third, fourth, and fifth grade. It is a girl-empowerment organization that inspires participants to be joyful, health, and confident using evidence-based lessons that combine relationship building, community strengthening, and goal setting with physical movement. Registration is now closed, and any questions about the program can be directed to Julie Lemire.

WLC

- Halfway point of semester 2– kids are working hard and continue to rise to meet our high standards
 - Teachers appreciate the support from admin and their follow ups with kids regarding extracurricular eligibility... It really helps keep kids motivated and on top of their classes when they are held accountable!
- High schoolers took PSAT/SAT proctored by HS teachers on 3/27
 - Second half of the day kids were able to meet with teachers for extra help, remediate competencies, etc.
 - Kids were also provided with career exploration enrichment by guidance
- Course selection process for the 2024-2025 school year is wrapping up; kids turned in their course selections for next year on 3/26, which were signed off by parents.
 - Advisors worked very hard with the kids and communicated home with parents to make sure students signed up for appropriate classes to ensure on-time graduation and proper challenge
- 16 high school students leave for a trip to Venice, Florence, and Rome on April 13 and return on April 19. They will be accompanied by Erin Rosana, Amanda Kovaliv, Katie Gosselin, and Ned Pratt. Kids are super excited for the trip of a lifetime!
- Most of the juniors and seniors attended the annual ski trip at Pat's Peak on March 21st, organized by Mr. Comerford— a great time was had by all!
- May 8-9: 21 middle schoolers will be taking an overnight trip to Boston, where they will tour historic sites that connect to the 8th grade Social Studies curriculum. The trip is being spearheaded by Melissa Norton and the kids are really looking forward to it.
- Middle school student council (advised by Melissa Norton) is beginning to organize a MS field day, which will be held sometime in June.
- Veteran MS teachers are leading the newer teachers in PD to ensure the NH SAS is administered as effectively as possible
- Marybeth Wiley is taking her 6th and 8th grade students on a tour of the library, and will do a scavenger hunt with the librarian. It helps to foster community relationships and introduce students to all that the library has to offer. We take the trip twice per year, so all students in all of my classes get to go.
- Also with Ms. Wiley, 8th grade students are finishing up their ePortfolios. The ePortfolio requires that the students prove that they have met specific competencies, and their projects show that they have learned new technology skills. Creating the ePortfolio utilizes the 8th grade students' presentation, writing, and editing skills, and it helps to better prepare them for high school. The students are focused and are doing well!

- The Visual Arts at WLC- Currier Museum Field Trip for High School
 - Ms. Hall is looking for 2-3 adults who would like to join her high school art field trip to the Currier Art Museum in Manchester. The date is TBD, but she is trying to lock in a day towards the end of May. You would meet at WLC in the morning around 9am, and leave on a bus by 9:30 am.
- WLC Garden Curriculum Project is Looking for Community Involvement in the form of 1). Time & gardening skill sets, 2). Materials and tools when needed (such as compost), 3). Monetary contributions, 4). Any other ideas? We're all ears!
 - There are a group of educators at WLC who aim to continue to integrate an outdoor garden and farming curriculum into our programming in order to get our students learning outside more, as well as to enable the garden space to become a connection with the community. This past October we hosted Autumn Fest where nonprofit Cornucopia joined us to support this curriculum initiative. Although it was a beautiful gathering, and we began the process to prep the garden beds for spring, our community attendance was quite low. However, our science classes have started soil testing and permaculture prep, and our arts classes continue to use the space for creative inspiration and outdoor drawing and painting.
- This spring we are considering to host a garden awareness event downtown in early May on a day that the senior class is planning to host a car wash and bake sale. We have had many events downtown in the past, and these have shown to be the most successful. This way, students and community members will be able to set up to sell their art and handmade goods, and we can try to gauge more community interest to help us with the development of our school garden. ~ Is anyone on the board interested in supporting this cause? Contact Emily Hall at e.hall@sau63.org

WILTON-LYNDEBOROUGH COOPERATIVE 1 2 SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 3 Tuesday, March 19, 2024 Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative M/H School 4 5 6:30 p.m. 6 7 The videoconferencing link was published several places including on the meeting agenda. 8 9 Present: Dennis Golding, Brianne Lavallee (online until 7:20pm), Tiffany Cloutier-Cabral, Darlene Anzalone, John Zavgren, 10 Michelle Alley, Geoffrey Allen, Diane Foss, and Jonathan Lavoie 11 12 Student Support Services Director, Ned Pratt, Principal Bridgette Fuller, Assistant Principal Katie Gosselin, Technology Director Nicholas Buroker, Curriculum Coordinator Samantha Dignan (online until 7:45pm), and Clerk Kristina Fowler 13 14 15 I. CALL TO ORDER 16 Mr. Pratt called the meeting to order at 6:30pm. 17 18 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 19 The Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 20 21 III. **ELECTIONS/APPOINTMENTS** 22 a. Elections 23 i. School Board Chair 24 Mr. Pratt asked for nominations for School Board Chair. 25 26 Mr. Golding was nominated by Ms. Lavallee and seconded by Ms. Foss. There were no other nominations. 27 28 Mr. Pratt provided an opportunity for Mr. Golding to speak to the nomination. 29 30 Mr. Golding voiced that he appreciates the nomination; he believes we had a great Board year last year. Everyone worked great with only minor disagreements. We were able to come together on most subjects, had really good discussions, and got a lot of 31 32 things done this year. He believes we can continue on that same path this year. He would appreciate everyone's support in this 33 nomination. 34 35 Mr. Pratt asked for any Board discussion. None heard. 36 37 Mr. Pratt asked for a vote, all in favor of Mr. Golding as School Board Chairman. 38 Voting: via roll call vote, all aye, motion carried. 39 40 Mr. Pratt turned the meeting over to Chairman Golding. 41 ii. School Board Vice Chair 42 Chairman Golding asked for nominations for Vice Chair. 43 44 Mr. Lavoie was nominated by Mr. Allen and seconded by Ms. Anzalone. 45 46 Ms. Lavallee was nominated by Ms. Foss and seconded by Ms. Cloutier-Cabral. 47 48 Chairman Golding gave each candidate the opportunity to speak to the nomination. 49 50 Ms. Lavallee spoke to her history on the Board. She has been on the Board for 4 years and believes she has demonstrated through the years, she has a good professional understanding of boundaries and promoting proper chain of command. When 51 issues are brought to her as an individual board member, she tries to tell people what chain of command to follow. One of the 52 things she heard years ago was community members particularly in Lyndeborough that they would like us to visit the schools 53 54 more and she took that on and has visited the schools whenever possible. She talks to students, staff and volunteers in the 55 buildings and she volunteers for things like the Spelling Bee and WLC senior project presentations. She has participated in these 56 for the last couple of years. She has flexibility in her schedule to do that and is thankful as not all board members do. She thinks that does help to show that the Board as a whole has interest in what the schools are doing. She tries to be accessible to 57 58 community members and respond in a timely manner to the emails that are sent to the Board as that is a one of her duties as Vice 59 Chair. She always shares and coordinates with administration whenever needed for example if there is legal counsel required

prior to responding she has demonstrated the ability to think critically and problem solve when determining the appropriate professional response. She echoed what Chairman Golding said earlier, she thinks we had a great year last year and would like to

60

61

keep it going. Having consistency in leadership is not always about just keeping things the same, it is showing we are reliable and predicable and trustworthy which helps inspire trust and confidence in the community and in the staff which we are trying to work on retention and thinks that will help. While being Vice Chair the past few years she has completed a number of in-services on how to run confident meetings and believes she has shown that in the meetings when she has had to run them that she has been able to facilitate the pre-sharing of ideas while keeping the conversation on the agenda. That helps us be more efficient and more focused on problem solving. She embraces her role of support for the Chair; she has no desires to be Chair. She likes the support role of Vice Chair and would love to continue in this position. She feels confident that the fellow board members were satisfied with her representation of the Board, staff and all the community members in Wilton and Lyndeborough. The feedback she has received from community members in Lyndeborough and Wilton has been positive. She thanked everyone for listening.

Mr. Lavoie spoke that he did not originally plan on the nomination but was approached by a couple people on the Board about it. He is open to it. He did Chair on other boards in the past. He always says the same thing to everybody that asks him what he thinks about it. He looks at it as more of a glorified moderator position and Chairman Golding may agree with that. He tried in his first year to listen, be open to others opinions and speak his opinion as well but to be impartial and try to come into everything with an open mind. His goal as Vice Chair would be to be there to bounce ideas off the Chair and have him bounce ideas off him. He would like to get more involved in the school. He has 2 young boys coming out of FRES, one coming into the MS next year and he hopes to be here quite a while. Coming out of Lyndeborough and Chairman Golding being from Wilton, he thinks it is important to have one position from Wilton and one from Lyndeborough. He would appreciate your support. He will try to keep this short and thinks everyone saw how he presents himself last year and he agrees with Chairman Golding we did have a productive year and would like to keep that going.

Chairman Golding opens it up for Board discussion asking to keep it to the candidate they support we have 2 excellent candidates.

Mr. Allen voiced that Mr. Lavoie is an excellent representative for the position he thinks he has proven himself on numerous committees not just here but in the community as well and he nominated him for that reason. He is a voice of reason, not to take away from anyone else who is running. He thinks we have a good Board and thinks we will have good positions no matter what ends up happening.

Ms. Anzalone echoes what Mr. Allen says and knows that Mr. Lavoie is very involved in town politics in Lyndeborough and will be able to represent the voice of Lyndeborough. She really liked that he and Mr. Allen have been doing recaps on Facebooks. As we know, unfortunately, not many come to these meetings or even call in it is good to proactively get the information out there. She thinks it has helped a lot. Obviously, the Board the last year was seen much more positively than the year before but thinks a lot of that is just with the Board itself but also it was great having them do those posts every single week. It shows we are trying our best to be very transparent with everything and that is very important.

Ms. Cloutier-Cabral voiced a vote for Ms. Lavallee is not a vote against Mr. Lavoie. They are both strong leaders. Last year went smooth and she likes continuity of things. Ms. Lavallee did a great job, was very accessible and did many seminars and meetings and reaching out she knows Mr. Lavoie did a lot as well. She is looking forward to a great year and wanted people to know a vote for Ms. Lavallee was not against Mr. Lavoie. She thinks he is very capable of leading anything.

Ms. Foss voiced a vote for Ms. Lavallee is not a vote against Mr. Lavoie; he is super organized and goes to bat for a lot of different things. He did a tremendous amount of work. She honestly does not like to fix things if they are not broken and last year was her first year and felt very comfortable how Chairman Golding and Ms. Lavallee ran the meetings and because of that, she is inclined to want to keep Ms. Lavallee on. There was controversy in years past, we didn't have any that and it allowed us to get a lot done. She doesn't like to change things if they don't have to be changed, that is the biggest reason she supports Ms.

Ms. Alley voiced being new to the Board and not very familiar with Chair vs. Vice Chair, asked for a description of what a Vice Chair would be doing. Chairman Golding responded that the Vice Chair is the Chair when the Chair is not around. They have all the same duties and roles. Ms. Alley asked Mr. Lavoie to speak to what would set him apart from another candidate not specifically Ms. Lavallee. Mr. Lavoie spoke about being in a Chair role in other organizations. Being here, he thinks the way Chairman Golding runs the show is similar to the way he would. He would ask the Board, to earn one of those votes that may be for Ms. Lavallee; if you like, the way the Chairman runs it, you would have it similar with him. He thinks that is important. He is not trying to make waves. You are trying to emulate the person who was voted as Chairman and keep things continuous and keep things running in the right direction. He has a similar style running a meeting like Chairman Golding has portrayed over the past year.

Ms. Lavallee spoke in regard to the Vice Chair role, one of the things she brings is she also tries to run things similar to the Chairman. She took the webinar on "How to Run Effective Meetings", the Chairman does an excellent job with that, and she tries to emulate that. The other thing she helps with during a meeting is her knowledge of RSA's and the legislative piece of it because of her role as Chair of the Policy Committee she is frequently reading and reviewing policies and legislative updates that

lead to those policies. When something comes up during a meeting that we have to reference a policy or RSA, even if she doesn't know the answer right away she does know how to find it quickly. For example having a discussion on bids, she called Point of Order to follow the policy and look at the dollar amount we are using. This is what she brings as a support person. When you are running a meeting, it is hard to look at those policies during real time and she tries to do that to help the Chair.

Chairman Golding asked for a vote for your choice of nominee for Vice Chair. Voting: via roll call vote, 5-4, for Ms. Lavallee (5 Ms. Lavallee, 4 Mr. Lavoie)

Ms. Cloutier-Cabral-Ms. Lavallee

Mr. Zavgren-Ms. Lavallee

Ms. Foss-Ms. Lavallee

Ms. Lavallee-Ms. Lavallee

Mr. Allen-Mr. Lavoie

Ms. Anzalone-Mr. Lavoie

Ms. Alley-Mr. Lavoie

Mr. Lavoie-Mr. Lavoie

Chairman Golding-breaks tie for Ms. Lavallee

Chairman Golding spoke of being a fan of continuity. He breaks the tie by voting for Ms. Lavallee, confirming her as Vice Chair.

b. Appointments

. Committees

Members were provided a roster of current committees and membership. Chairman Golding reviewed committees and the role of the Budget Committee Liaison, which is to attend all budget committee meetings and report back to the Board.

The Facilities Committee- This committee discusses facility repairs, how to get money, what projects are due and coming up, hears from the Facilities Director and Business Administrator. Mr. Allen added that they oversee the CIP and hear from the Facilities Director and Business Administrator. They meet once or twice a month or more if needed to hear feedback on what is needed this year and review quotes, bids and recommend projects and bring that back to the Board. The goal is to not have a 15-hour Board meeting; we do it at the committee level and bring it back to the Board. Ms. Cloutier-Cabral, Mr. Allen and Mr. Zavgren volunteer for the Facilities Committee.

Voting: all aye for Ms. Cloutier-Cabral, Mr. Allen and Mr. Zavgren on the Facilities Committee (Ms. Lavallee had no audio/no vote)

 Strategic Planning Committee- Chairman Golding voiced we try to build a plan of growth and try to determine if all is running smoothly or continue the plan or to back off or break it up. We look at all the aspects of planning the year, no matter what it. Ms. Cloutier-Cabral, Ms. Anzalone, Mr. Allen and Ms. Alley volunteer for the Strategic Planning Committee. Mr. Allen withdraws after Chairman Golding noted that with 4 board members it gets tough due to it becoming a quorum if another board member attends.

Voting: via roll call vote, all aye for Ms. Cloutier-Cabral, Ms. Anzalone and Ms. Alley to be on the Strategic Planning Committee.

Budget Committee Liaison-Chairman Golding explained the liaison goes back and forth between the meetings and brings information back to the Board after the meetings. Ms. Alley volunteers for this.

Voting: via roll call vote, all aye for Ms. Alley to be the Budget Committee Liaison for the Board.

Negotiations Committee-Chairman Golding noted there are no collective bargaining agreements that need to be negotiated this year, the committee will not be needed this year.

Policy Committee-Chairman Golding explained this committee goes over every policy, updates as needed and brings forth new policies should the government say we need them. They bring it to us for edits, comments and questions and after 2-3 reads, we vote to put it into policy. Ms. Foss, Mr. Lavoie and Ms. Lavallee volunteer for this committee.

Voting: via roll call vote, all aye for Ms. Foss, Mr. Lavoie and Ms. Lavallee to be on the Policy Committee.

Technology Committee-Chairman Golding explained this committee meets quarterly. They go over the 5-year technology plan and any new things that might come forth or what needs updates, what we do for end of life equipment and how to dispose of it, computer updates etc. and Mr. Buroker takes care of most of the legwork on that. Ms. Cloutier-Cabral, Chairman Golding and Mr. Zavgren volunteer for this committee.

186 187

Voting: via roll call vote, all aye, for Ms. Cloutier-Cabral, Chairman Golding and Mr. Zavgren to be on the Technology Committee.

188 189 190

IV. ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA

Mr. Pratt reported he has no request for adjustments.

191 192

193

194

195

196

197

198

Ms. Anzalone commented that we talked last year about doing a workshop of some kind for goal setting, can we make sure to do that. Chairman Golding noted it could be discussed during school board meeting dates. Ms. Lavallee added in case she has to leave before that is discussed, she spoke to Will Phillips at NHSBA and they are filling up fast with night meetings. She suggests getting back to them within the next week or 2 weeks to schedule something for the spring otherwise; it may be pushed out until the summer. Chairman Golding asked if the Board is OK for him to work with the Superintendent to schedule Will Phillips and Barret Christina from NHSBA to come in to go over what boards do, how to run boards, how to make motions, etc. There was no objection heard. He does not believe there is a fee for this service but we will double check.

199 200 201

202

203

204

205

206

207208

209

210

211

212213

214

215

216

217

218219

220

221

222

223 224

225

226

227

228

229

230 231

232

233

234

235

236 237

238

V. BOARD CORRESPONDENCE

a. WLC PTO Update

Ms. Crystal Gill from the WLC PTO was present and provided an update on their activities this year. She spoke of having more donations this year, it was amazing the outpouring of parent donations and she thinks it was due to the emails and webpage that is well visited. They were overwhelmed with the amount of donations. The tables were full to the room with cookie donations and it was amazing what we did for the teachers. They take great pride to give back to them. The big thing on their PTO has always been to teach students and groups about fundraising, give ideas and support them. They spent a good portion of this year supporting those fundraisers rather than us running them, they had students and athletic teams run them. We have seen great success during basketball season with board member Ms. Lavallee and other parents; like the Crouse's and other students, all stepping up to do something. Our goal is always for the students to run those events. It was great for us to see that come together. For sports night this year, we were asked to step up and Ms. Lavallee spoke earlier about being involved in the school, she was always here to support those students it was great for everyone here to see her in the school and Chairman Golding was here. It was really nice to see people stepping up and it has been encouraging other parents as well. With sports night this year we were able to provide dinners with the school's support and our desserts. It was a the collaboration that made that happen and for us was overwhelming to see that support come in and was exactly what we were hoping for, seeing parents stepping up; it was a great success. We have teacher appreciation coming up, that is the next big jump and she will probably come back to ask for help with donations for food because that is another thing they are proud of. She will speak about that when she comes back as Chairman Golding has asked her to come back. She has collaborated with the group that runs the Wilton Old Home Days; they invited her to come in and wanted to find a way to bring students in this year. She met with them a few times and want as many students as she can get for this summer. They want kids to provide games at Old Home Days, which doesn't happen every year. She is happy they were invited and happy to incorporate kids into it. The Penny Sale is this weekend; it was a great success last year and hoping this year too. We have 15 plus kids set up to volunteer, it is overwhelming. The junior class and siblings and even seniors from last year will come back help this class, all collaborating. The community will see our kids and we will stand out this year with the bright orange shirts that say volunteer on the back. It shows the kids and us as a group, we sold tickets for 1 hour and 15 minutes and ran out of tickets and presold 3000 before the event. That is huge; the tickets are 50 cents apiece. There are big "penny salers" out there, it is a large event. She is here to ask for anyone listening that they are looking for food donations between 12pm and 2pm. We will take anything you provide, baked goods, mac and cheese, anything anyone will donate. We have Mel Jones with the Dance Team who will help at the food table; they will be in uniform united and talk about their recent event. We have Laura Bujak, she is at the how to table for new comers. She volunteered to educate with the kids to help, this is only our 2nd year with the Lions Club. Ms. Anzalone has volunteered her time. Ms. Gill asked if anyone can help from 4:15pm-6pm, even if not the whole time but any time would be great to see you work with the kids, us, and greeting the community. They need help at the doors of the gym as they come in for prizes and contain any food from heading into the gym. They have nametags and a shirt if we have any left. If you can email her tonight if you can help, and any food is welcome. She spoke of having food that can be contained in bags is best such as cookies. Ms. Foss spoke of the event going on for years, it is a nice event that is not expensive to bring your kids or grandkids Ms. Gill spoke of the amazing prizes, a \$600 photo package, and a lot of gift cards. Ms. Anzalone spoke of Ms. Gill being very modest and does an amazing job. Ms. Anzalone tries to volunteer as much as she can; Ms. Gill does a great job, thank you for all you do. Chairman Golding thanked Ms. Gill who did an amazing job and welcomes her back to for an update. He asked if Mr. Post is bringing is pulled pork Ms. Gill doesn't know but will ask she had many people request it. Chairman Golding requests she email Ms. Fowler (k.fowler@sau63.org) and she will share it with the Board.

239 240 241

242

VI. PUBLIC COMMENTS

The public comment section of the agenda was read.

243244245

246247

Ms. Mary Golding congratulated the PTO on all their success, she loves hearing that board members are so involved, that did not happen when she was PTO President. It is great that it is happening now. She is happy Ms. Gill will be giving regular reports. She congratulated Ms. Alley and Mr. Zavgren for being on the Board and Mr. Allen for being voted back in, nice to have you all.

She congratulated Ms. Lavallee. Ms. Golding is from Wilton and notes Ms. Lavallee has never had a Wilton vs. Lyndeborough kind of thing for all the years she has been watching the Board and knows she had some real struggles with some of the previous board members, personal attacks and things like that but she stood strong. She is grateful that she has made not just Lyndeborough, but Lyndeborough-Wilton our community and works really hard and cares about the children in Lyndeborough as much as she does the children in Wilton and vice versa. Thank you Ms. Lavallee for that. To the Chairman, the last board season has had some of the best meetings she has been a part of listening to and thinks it stems from your direction. The way that you move thigs along and keep a positive team beside you. It is pretty astounding. Congratulations, you deserve to be Chair again and she knows how hard that decision was for him to make.

Ms. Lynn Crouse, Lyndeborough gave shout-outs to sports night in general and our Athletic Director Cam Taber. We have been going to sports night for quite a while and he has done a tremendous job, this last one in particular she was so impressed. He is an incredible speaker and did an amazing job and we are proud of him. Great shout-out to him, Crystal and Mandy and the PTO, there is not enough credit we could give them. It is a small number of people who do a large amount for our schools and would encourage parents to get involved. There are only a few parents who come over and over again and encourages parents of younger kids coming in too. She gave a shout-out to the girls' varsity basketball team, doing a great job getting into playoffs. It is a small team of 9 who did an outstanding job going to playoffs and played teams twice as big; they made us proud and played some schools who did not show the best sportsmanship. She is really proud of them, our girls and Coach Crowley; it was a shining moment for our school and community. She gets chills thinking of it. It was really an amazing time to be part of our community and wanted to give shout-outs to them and not all are aware of those things happening behind the scenes.

Mr. Pratt called out all the phone numbers and names joined in the meeting asking if they wanted to comment.

Mr. Don Rankin commended the Board on all they accomplished last year, he encourages you to keep your eye on the ball and do not want to get distracted by any ideological problems. Stick to business. You are doing a great job.

Mr. Adam Lavallee congratulated the new board members and looks forward to working with you on the Budget Committee. I know you are all excited too.

VII. FOLLOW-UP DISTRICT MEETING

Chairman Golding asked if there were any comments or concerns from district meeting. He felt it went better than what he expected. He has only heard positive things on how the Board presented (articles 5-8). Most felt they were informed enough, felt they could make their decision, and felt comfortable with it. He thinks everyone here did a fantastic job. Mr. Allen did a great job presenting facilities, Ms. Anzalone, Mr. Allen and Mr. Mannarino did an excellent job presenting the teacher's contract. Mr. Allen did a great job with Mr. Lavoie presenting article 8. Good job. Ms. Foss spoke regarding when Mr. Schultz questioned some of the percentages. She notes he has heard him on a number of things and is really a "number cruncher", she doesn't doubt his honesty but she felt she was at a loss in terms of which number was accurate; he could make a mistake too. What do we do in a situation like that? Chairman Golding responded he thought he was combining articles to come up with a tax impact percentage. What we would do in that instance is trust our business administrator to have the correct number for us and the community so we all understand what our tax impact is. Mr. Allen said we all here set board policy and manage the Superintendent. We have people who are experts in each of these fields with SPED, business administration and facilities and when we let those people do what they do as professionals and are best at we refer to them. We can say there is a possibility we may be incorrect and we can check out the numbers and respond back to you. Ms. Foss noted it did not seem to a problem, everyone got what they needed. Mr. Schultz always has numbers he brings up. Clearly, he was supported; he was just saying and she wondered if it was something we had to be watching and following. Chairman Golding added like Mr. Allen said, that is why we have our Superintendent and we hope he hires the best people in those positions and we get the answers we need quick from them. Mr. Allen added there are also different ways to look at numbers and one of the things you will hear a lot is cost of education per student, what the DOE is doing would be very different than what you will see here on a budget. There are different criteria going to different percentages and we may not always be comparing apples and oranges. Mr. Lavoie asked to take a note regarding an individual who spoke about one classroom that had less than ideal conditions, can we make a note to make sure we look into that to see if there is any validity behind it. Chairman Golding responded they heard this at the meeting and believes they started looking into it the following Monday. Superintendent Weaver is out of town and when he gets back, we will ask him for a report. A request was made to add it to the next agenda. Chairman Golding agrees it will be the first item under old business. Mr. Allen noted he had made a note to add it to Facilities Committee as well.

VIII. 2024-2025 DRAFT SCHOOL DISTRICT CALENDAR

Chairman Golding noted everyone should have this in their board packet. Mr. Pratt gave an overview of the calendar. There are 2 days of new teacher orientation, and then 3 days for professional development (PD) and a no school day on August 30 for a long weekend for parents. In October we have a half day, required by collective bargaining agreement for PD and on November

8 that is not the parent/teacher conference "day" per say, it is a "comp day" per the CBA and the teachers will scheduling those meetings at the convenience of parents and spread it out over time. It is the time equivalent for the teachers. December we have a longer holiday recess returning January 2. Early release on February 4 for PD, March 28 is PD and May 23 we will look at teacher workshops for testing (iReady) and planning for the following year. We have a projected last day of June 6 and with 5 snow days we would have the last day on June 13. With the increase to 7.5 hours a day, we clear the requirements for hours of instruction. A question was raised what the start and end time of school will be. Mr. Pratt does not have that data right now and will get back to you. It was noted the highlights for holidays (and no school days) are a nice touch and make it easy to see. A question was raised why April vacation was the last week as it is usually the week before. Mr. Pratt explains that is the NH DOE recommended week.

306

307

308

309

310

311 312

313

A MOTION was made by Ms. Cloutier-Cabral and SECONDED by Mr. Allen to approve the 2024-2025 School District Calendar.

Voting: all aye, motion carried.

318 319 320

321

322

323 324

325

326

327

328

329

330

331

332 333

334

335

336

337

338

339

340

341

342

343 344

345

346

347

348

349

350

351

352

353

354

355

356

357 358

359

360

361

362

363

364

365

366

367

IX. DRAFT SCHOOL BOARD MEETING DATES

Chairman Golding noted we don't meet in July; we do enough meetings and committee meetings and deserve some time with family. Typically, the 2nd meeting in December is the first meeting with the Budget Committee. He spoke of the Board not having joint sessions with the Budget Committee but instead it being more of an invite to budget presentations. He thinks last year there was a problem with the way the sessions were run and talking with administration from the past and old school board members, the School Board Chair always ran those meetings and he feels there was some control issues in that. He would like to have it more of an information session; still the same just with school board chair running it. He asks for any questions or comments, issues or discussion. Ms. Alley asked for clarification. Chairman Golding voiced he wants to see the School Board run that session, he spoke of a lot of back and forth last year, and it seemed disjointed at times and gave examples. He notes for all intense and purposes it will be the same. They would come in, ask all your questions, get the answers needed and instead the School Board would be running that meeting. A question was raised if this would be a new way of doing it or would this be an old way. Chairman Golding responded it used to be done that way then it changed just before COVID he was told and wants to have it back to the way it was before. Ms. Foss spoke that it was her first year being part of that and thinks anything we can do to streamline it would probably help. It is not that the School Board has a foot in the door more than anyone else in the library but felt like they were our guests and can see where it may have been difficult if there were 2 Chairs and you had not decided ahead of time who would field questions or who calls on those listening etc. She would be more comfortable having the school board moderate it. Mr. Allen asked why we have to have a joint meeting, what was the purpose, what are the goals. Chairman Golding believes we have a joint meeting because it is usually the first read of the budget and the Budget Committee's first time to hear the budget in full, the rest are breakdowns of the budget. Mr. Allen asked if there is an opportunity for them to share what they are talking about and for us to ask questions because we are ultimately the ones that approves what goes to district on the warrant. Is there an opportunity for us to provide feedback as to what we are looking for. Discussion continued including not understanding why the Budget Committee is running it, they are coming into our meeting. Chairman Golding voiced he understands it is the Budget Committee's budget and they need to hear all of that but they can also hear it in their meeting as well. They ask questions, they have administration come in and talk about it but if we are all hearing it at the same time; he was confused why we went to the Budget Committee running those sessions. It seems disjointed. Mr. Allen spoke that he agrees and sees it like when the Facilities Committee or any other committee makes recommendation but not the same. He sees they are building the budget and we can ask and answer questions and obtain feedback in that case, he does not know why the School Board would relinquish it but has no problem with it. Mr. Lavallee attempts to speak and advised to wait for public comment. Ms. Alley notes when you say "joint meeting" to her that defines that you have almost 2 Chairs that are on equal grounds. I don't know why it is run the way it is now but to me when you have joint, that means you have 2 committees coming together and you are working together maybe it is a misunderstanding of what it means. Maybe it is more of an understanding before the Budget Committee comes in what their purpose is. Chairman Golding believes it could have been he believes it started around 2017 or 2018. Ms. Fowler believes around then but doesn't remember exactly what year at this time. Ms. Cloutier-Cabral suggested having a workshop with them and determine how to do that this year, how to make it more organized, and when people are called on etc. Ms. Fowler was asked when it typically starts and ends, Ms. Fowler responds the 2nd meeting in September starts and we try to end the 1st meeting in January but usually goes longer to at least to the 2nd. Ms. Anzalone asked if part of the purpose was to have both groups together so the public could hear both at the same time. She suggested the 2 Chairs get together, talk about it and decide. She doesn't want to come across as we are trying to change things or insult them as they are elected too. Chairman Golding noted that is not his intent. Ms. Anzalone notes there is a chance to coordinate better and talk about how to run it better with the Chair. Chairman Golding responds that if that is the directive for the Chair to meet with the Budget Committee Elected Chair to determine how we would present meetings in those sessions, he could do that as well. Ms. Anzalone notes instead of us just making the decision hopes there is an opportunity to meet with them and say we are feeling that maybe it was a little discombobulated, what is the best way to run the meeting and they may decide that is better way but would rather have the decision made with the Budget Committee. Ms. Foss felt what was happening in the joint meetings was that yes, the budget is the responsibility of the Budget Committee, but they were coming in here wanting information from us in terms of what we felt we needed and the people most qualified from the school to help build that. Maybe the Budget Committee was asking for a lot of things and maybe why there was a vote for us to come back to the table to cut things. She thinks it is a good idea for the School Board to do the moderating but does not have a problem with what Ms. Anzalone said either. She

thinks it is legit to streamline it and have the school board chair moderate it. She would be surprised if the Chair, assuming it is the same person, she would be surprised if he was offended; he was great to work with and very collaborative but either way it as long as it is streamlined. Ms. Alley voiced she thinks both Chairs working it out together is the most ideal solution. Chairman Golding notes he doesn't believe we need a motion, just the direction to the Chair that it is ok to talk to the Budget Committee to go over how we present our meetings going forward. He asked if everyone agree with that. No objection heard. He will go to their first meeting and set something up with the Chair and report back.

A question was raised why the meetings are on Tuesday nights. Ms. Foss had been asked if the meetings could be moved to another night as it conflicts with the Lions Club. Chairman Golding responded it has been on Tuesday nights for a long time; he doesn't want to offend the Lions Club but feels it is important to keep it the same (Tuesday) night.

Ms. Cloutier-Cabral noted to be aware of when district meeting is in correlation to school vacation week.

A MOTION was made by Mr. Allen and SECONDED by Ms. Cloutier-Cabral to approve the 2024-2025 school board meeting dates.

Voting: all aye, motion carried.

X. ACTION ITEMS

a. Approve Minutes of Previous Meeting

A MOTION was made by Ms. Cloutier-Cabral and SECONDED by Ms. Anzalone to approve the minutes of March 19, 2024 as written.

Voting: six ayes; two abstentions from Ms. Alley and Mr. Zavgren, motion carried.

XI. COMMITTEE REPORTS

i. Strategic Planning Committee

Chairman Golding reported a lot of the meeting was centered around the SRO (School Resource Officer). DJ Garcia was there as the representative for the Wilton Select Board. He suggested filling the position with a lot of different officers on a rotating schedule. The committee and administration did not feel that was what we were looking for. We talked about having a full time SRO which didn't go over well with the town and we may have to compromise to have 1 part time officer 20-25 hours which would give us the opportunity to prove or disprove why we needed it. We discussed training, a 40-hour course over 5 days, cost \$550. Superintendent discussed this with the committee and we said we would probably put forward to pay for that but Mr. Garcia said he didn't see a reason why the town wouldn't pay it. Ms. Cloutier-Cabral Ms. Anzalone and Ms. Alley will discuss it at the next meeting. The committee discussed the district report card that the Superintendent had a bunch of items on that he wanted us to give suggestions on. He wanted to know if we had suggestions to add to the list also and was going to get back to us on the items we requested from him. Ms. Cloutier-Cabral added we are looking at a baseline for how the district is doing and going forward. Taking a temperature and watch that for a year, then 2 and 5 years based on the goals. Ms. Anzalone questioned if we should set the first meeting since the committees are set. The next Strategic Planning Committee is set for April 8 at 6pm. Mr. Allen does not have the next Facilities Committee meeting set but will send something out as Chair until a new one is elected if there is no objection. No objection heard. He would propose to continue with Mondays for that committee. Chairman Golding confirms the Technology Committee will meet next on Tuesday May 7 at 6pm. The Policy Committee has not set up the next meeting yet. Members will get together to determine a date. Ms. Alley notes the next Budget Committee meeting may be held on April 16, they are looking to see who can make it.

ii. Facilities Committee

Mr. Allen reported there was no meeting in March due to the Board workshop.

XII. PUBLIC COMMENTS

The public comment section of the agenda was read.

Ms. Mary Golding voiced appreciation for the Board, this is a job you don't get paid for and put a lot of time into it. Thank you again and thank you for volunteering and doing such great work.

Mr. Pratt called out all the phone numbers and names joined in the meeting asking if they wanted to comment.

Mr. Adam Lavallee commented you guys don't have the authority to take over those joint meetings; you can have meetings where you just don't join us. We had a lawyer come in and that was why we had those meetings. You had it backwards as if the Budget Committee were an advisory committee. We are not, we are a taxing authority and when you have a joint session those are our meetings that is why your school board meeting stops and a new meeting has to start. You can check, it may have changed, but I think the Budget Committee could vote to relinquish control of those meetings. I will not vote in favor of that I don't know how everyone else would. That is the reason for the change, we decided to get clarity on who owns the budget

because it was treated as if the school boards own the budget and we discovered the Budget Committee owns those joint sessions. Whatever first year I was elected is the year it changed.

XIII. SCHOOL BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS

Ms. Alley commented that she is grateful to be here and thankful for all who voted for her. Being on the Budget Committee, it was a fairly good experience.

Ms. Foss commented for those online if I was incorrect about who owned the joint meetings she apologizes and stands corrected.

 Ms. Cloutier-Cabral welcomed the new members, she appreciates you both coming to work with us, glad Mr. Allen is back and we will be on the Facilities Committee again. She thinks it will be a great year. She thanked Ms. Gill for coming in and encourages all to support the PTO, you don't have to attend the meetings if you give your email it does not mean you are committed. She encourages you to support them and the students.

Mr. Lavoie thanked the voters voting overwhelming support for our school system. He welcomed Mr. Zavgren and Ms. Alley and congratulated Ms. Lavallee. He thanked Mr. LoVerme and his service on the School Board for many years. We appreciate your time and thank you for that.

Ms. Anzalone welcomed the new members, congratulated Mr. Allen for re-election and thanked the community coming to vote support for our teachers. She was nervous but thought it went well. She thanked Ms. Gill for coming out and looks forward to another productive year.

Mr. Zavgren thanked the citizens for voting for him, he will do his best to represent them. He notes he has a lot to learn and appreciates being voted in.

Mr. Allen congratulated the Chair and Vice Chair and thanked the Lyndeborough community for sending him back and to the teachers and staff who go to school and serve every day. He looks forward to serving you. He thanked the PTO; he knows how tireless and thankless it is. He thanked Mr. LoVerme who brought a wealth of knowledge to the Board, which will be missed. He spoke of being required to have a new member orientation; we need to set a goal workshop to be focused on Board evaluations. He believes we were supposed to do that before the Board changed over according to policy. He asked about reaching out to NHSBA about that board meeting piece and see if they can provide guidance.

Chairman Golding echoed all those statements. He thanked Ms. Gill for coming in. We will need to coordinate how many times she will come back. He commented that this is a school board meeting, the School Board can choose what is on the agenda, and if we decide not to have a joint meeting, we don't have one. Administration can go to both meetings and present at both but we don't want to see them have to do that. He thanked all involved at district meeting from set up staff, school board and presenters to Mr. Buroker who did the sound for the community members who came out. It was really pretty decent turnout and glad things turned out the way they did. The school board did a fantastic job; he believes we answered all the questions raised.

XIV. NON-PUBLIC SESSION RSA 91-A: 3 II (A) (C)

A MOTION was made by Ms. Anzalone and SECONDED by Ms. Foss to enter Non-Public Session to review the non-public minutes RSA 91-A: 3 II (C) at 8:03.

Voting: via roll call vote, all aye, motion carried.

RETURN TO PUBLIC SESSION

The Board entered public session at 8:09pm.

A MOTION was made to seal the non-public session minutes RSA 91-A: 3 II (C) by Mr. Allen and SECONDED by Mr. Lavoie. Voting: all aye, motion carried unanimously.

XV. ADJOURNMENT

 A MOTION was made by Mr. Allen and SECONDED by Ms. Cloutier-Cabral to adjourn the Board meeting at 8:10pm. Voting: all aye, motion carried unanimously.

Respectfully submitted,

483 Kristina Fowler



Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District School Administrative Unit #63

192 Forest Road Lyndeborough, NH 03082 603-732-9227

Peter Weaver Superintendent of Schools Ned Pratt
Director of Student Support Services

Kristie LaPlante Business Administrator

TO: Sophia Menke FROM: Peter Weaver DATE: April 2, 2024 RE: Resignation

In accordance with Policy GCQC:

"A resignation by a licensed employee who is under contract to the school should be submitted to the Superintendent. Said resignation of a licensed employee may take effect on a date approved by the Superintendent acting as agent of the School Board.

I am in receipt of your email dated March 20 that you intend to resign your position as Elementary Education Teacher effective on the last day of school of this year.

Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District provides a safe and educational environment that promotes student exploration, critical thinking and responsible citizenship.



Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District School Administrative Unit #63

192 Forest Road Lyndeborough, NH 03082 603-732-9227

Peter Weaver Superintendent of Schools Ned Pratt
Director of Student Support Services

Kristie LaPlante Business Administrator

TO: Taylor Smith FROM: Peter Weaver DATE: April 2, 2024 RE: Resignation

In accordance with Policy GCQC:

"A resignation by a licensed employee who is under contract to the school should be submitted to the Superintendent. Said resignation of a licensed employee may take effect on a date approved by the Superintendent acting as agent of the School Board.

I am in receipt of your letter dated March 26, 2024 that you intend to resign your position as the Spanish Teacher at WLC effective at the end of this school year.

Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District provides a safe and educational environment that promotes student exploration, critical thinking and responsible citizenship.